Page 1

From: Gina L. Turcotte <ginalyn@adelphia.net>
To: llinhardt@maine.edu'
Date: 3/8/2005 5:03:28 PM
Subject: Journals
Attachments: Journal Entry.doc

Magdalena,
Although a day late, attached you will find my journal entries for the first half of the semester, in MS Word format. There are 10 pages covering 5 separate journal entries.
If you desired to receive these in hard copy, hand delivered, please let me know and | will certainly comply.

Also, | have not yet received any grade for my DB entries 1-7 on Blackboard, although the class has received an average grade of 5. Is this an oversight or have you simply not gotten to this task
yet??

Please let me know, ASAP, if you have accepted this delivery of my joumal entries.
Thank you,
Gina L. Turcotte

Augusta Site
HUS 233

In the absence of Who You Are Not, Who You Are is not...
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Journal Entry #1


I work in an environment that is home to adolescents, age 10 – 13, who have been traumatized or abused in some way that they now exhibit violent, angry, and disrespectful behaviors toward themselves and others. It is a secure, locked residential facility that employs 35 professionals to care for these 7 children on a 24-hour basis. I have witnessed, first- hand, the affects trauma and abuse can have on a young child. I experience it, and am able to feel their pain, when I witness their unique form of “doublethink”. It’s disheartening, to say the least.



The children that I work with have innumerable qualities that come shining through when they are able to simply be who they are without having to be concerned about their environment and any possible dangers. I’m not sure what’s going on in their minds but whatever it is they feel like they need to be constantly on alert. They are hyperaware of their surroundings and are always on the lookout for trouble. This hyper-arousal sometimes causes them to react to stimuli in a way that is aggressive, defensive and sometimes violent. My job is to assure them, in some way, that they are safe, genuinely cared for and have no need to be hyper vigilant. Teaching them that they are safe in their environment is a most difficult task given their model of the world.


Herman’s thoughts about doublethink, specifically, “to preserve her faith in her parents, she must reject the first and most obvious conclusion that something is terribly wrong with them. She will go to any lengths to construct an explanation for her fate that absolves her parents of all blame and responsibility.” The children I work with demonstrate this view of the world on a moment-to-moment basis. Because of the experiences they have had in their very young lives they inherently think that they are unworthy of positive attention, affirmation and unconditional support. On one hand they desire positive interactions with staff and their peers and within a moment they are being verbally and physically assaultive. Their view of themselves and others changes with the wind and to help them refocus on positivism becomes virtually impossible.


One of our children appears to be challenged by a schizoaffective disorder. He is quite a charming, loving, likeable young man when he is focusing on the positive aspects of who he is, but he occasionally “slips” into this form of “doublethink” whereas nobody can break through the barrier of negativity that he envelopes himself in. It is quite mysterious as he is unable to be redirected, supported or communicated with. He appears to withdraw from the reality of his surroundings, and is able to only focus on the negative, antagonistic thoughts that usually escalate into assaultive behaviors. Trying to redirect him, or to capture his attention in an effort to redirect him, is almost always impossible, usually resulting in staff having to restrain him physically.


My heart breaks for this young man, especially when I’m having to participate in the restraint and thus being forced to listen to his pleas for help and his articulations that he “really is a good person on the inside”. I see the tears roll down his face and the genuine sadness and remorse that he feels after he realizes the situation he just caused himself to create. My dilemma is how to keep this child from slipping back into that form of “doublethink” so he doesn’t continue to create these experiences for himself. I’m still working on that one. 


Journal Entry #2

“Events even remotely connected with violence – sirens, thunder, a door slamming – elicited intense fear. There was chronic apprehension of imminent doom, of something terrible always about to happen. Any symbolic or actual sign of potential danger resulted in increased activity, agitation, pacing, screaming, and crying.” Reflecting on this passage causes me to revisit not-so-long-ago occurrences in my life. Being raised in a chaotic, violent, unstable, and unpredictable home with a violent, erratic father conditioned me to become acutely aware of the noises that occurred within my environment in an effort to gauge the atmosphere of the moment. 


Anticipating my father’s arrival home from work, I would listen intently for his truck barreling down the road, then being driven into the garage. I knew that it was only moments away that I would know what kind of mood my father was in once he opened the front door to the house and came walking up the stairs. If the door closed quietly, or was at least not slammed shut, I knew there was the possibility of a moderately calm evening. But, if I heard the door slam shut, or shut aggressively, I knew that I needed to be “on my best behavior” from this moment forward. Growing up with this need to be hyperaware of environmental noises has intruded into my daily living and has caused me countless problems with seemingly benign situations.

One particular distress surfaced when I was living with my boyfriend, who, unfortunately, shares many characteristics with my father. Kevin has a deep, masculine voice and an aggressive way of speaking to people, especially me. He typically shuts the door hard when he enters the house, although not for the same reasons my father would. Every time I would hear that door close, I would become anxious, agitated and fearful that I had “done something wrong”. I immediately began to reconsider my actions of that day and would try to reconcile any “misbehaviors” I may have committed. 


Because I was anxious about having been “bad”, I immediately created an attitude toward Kevin that would eventually escalate into an argument, and sometimes an all-out fight between him and me, when essentially I had fabricated it all in my mind. I remember one particular occasion when Kevin and I were standing in the kitchen, talking calmly and lovingly about my fears and anxieties. I explained to him that I despise loud noises, especially doors slamming. I’m still not sure why he did it, but immediately upon my making that statement, he reached over to a cupboard door, opened it and slammed it shut. I watched him do this with my physical eyes, but my soul wasn’t anticipating my reaction. As soon as I heard the noise of the door slamming, I recoiled and began to cry like a small child. He was shocked at my response and immediately tried to console me, to no avail. He didn’t understand the cause for my reaction, nor did I.

Although it is difficult to live peacefully in a violent world where loud noises abound, and people raise their voices, shout and scream, I must somehow find a way to avoid being affected by them. I need to assure myself that I am not in danger and that I had done nothing “wrong”. I must somehow find peace within myself that the world, and the people in it, cannot hurt me the way that I felt I was hurt by my father. That is also something I am still working on.


Journal Entry #3

Speaking of “double self”, as described on page 103 of Herman’s book, reminds me of the “double self” I’ve been grappling with for 36 years. My parents were a match made in hell, as some people would describe it. They were not right for each other and should never have gotten married, and definitely should not have had children together. But they did – they had my brother and then I came along 2 years later. Unfortunately for me, my family life was on the downward spiral when I was conceived. My mother wasn’t excited to be pregnant with me and my father had lost interest in his parenting role. From my understanding the integrity of their marriage was now questionable as well.

When I was born, my family’s finances were stretched beyond their limits, and the communication between my parents had significantly deteriorated into violence and aggression. From the information I have been given over the years, my temperament as a newborn was that of an inconsolable, irritable, non-conforming child. I would sleep when they were awake, and I would cry through the night while they tried to sleep. Because my mother’s relationship with my father was tenuous, at best, and because their finances were in need of a double income, my mother was too tired from a day of working and caring for my brother and father to give me the needed attention that I so vocally demanded. 

I learned, very early into my humanity, that I needed to rely on nobody to survive – that when I cried out to my mother she did not come to comfort me. I learned that I was completely independent, emotionally, from my parents and that they were not emotionally available to me. This experience has conditioned me to keep separate from other human beings in my life. I also learned, quite effectively, that I can rely on nobody to help me survive – that was a task only I could accomplish for myself, regardless of my age or level of maturity. With this experience, I created a double self that has persisted throughout the entirety of my life.


There is a “part of me” that is rebellious, angry, antagonistic, and defiant; then, there is another “part of me” that is lovable, giving, generous, and compassionate. I have always known that the softer “part of me” existed, even during the times when my mother would exclaim “you are just like your father”. I knew this statement was not upheld by positive evidence because I saw how they interacted with each other, I heard my mother complain about my father’s behavior, and I understood that his actions were not “right”. I could feel that truth “in my bones”. 

I distressingly wondered if my mother truly loved me or if she was just “doing the right thing” by fulfilling her “obligation” of being my mother. If she truly felt that I was “just like my father”, and I knew, all too well, how she felt about my father, then didn’t that mean that she held the same disgust for me as she did for him? That question has always been evident in my thoughts and it has emerged in my actions toward her and other people. If I truly was “just like my father”, and I knew and believed that his actions were abusive, didn’t that essentially mean that I was as deserving of respect as I held for my father? 


Simply put, I despised my father’s actions, behaviors and character, and I agreed with my mother that I was “just like him”, so I created this “bad person” inside of me who feels the need to stay distant from people and to fend them off with aggression when they got too close. This “double self” has caused me to create temporary relationships with others, and to stay disconnected from Gina, “the loving person”. I deprive myself of things that feel good – respect, love, support, acceptance, food, exercise, sex – because I feel, for some reason, that I am this “bad person” who is deserving of nothing but contempt. 

I have drifted through multitudes of unhealthy, abusive, dependent relationships with men and have been unable to create solid, close relationships with women. Fundamentally, I don’t trust them to always have my best interests at heart and not to do things that would hurt me. I am always on the alert for dangers and am unable to relax. This formula does not make for a comfortable relationship. 


I am hyperaware of other people’s feelings, moods, and demeanors and I am always observing body language, facial expressions, tones of voice, intonation and any other non-verbal cue that will indicate their state of mind. I have found that I can create a safe environment for myself if I am aware of their state of mind so I will know what methods of communication will work best with them at that moment. Unfortunately, by being so aware of my surroundings, and any signs of danger, I am unable to focus on who Gina is, and what Gina is feeling, needing or wanting at that moment. My needs and desires are almost always redefined in order to fit the current atmosphere. I am unable to enjoy being Me and spend most of my time making sure I am in a safe atmosphere. One of my personal goals is to disregard the demeanor of those around me and to simply BE Who I Am – that lovable, caring, worthy person who lives deep inside.

Journal Entry #4

I have been diagnosed with Bipolar Disorder, seemingly evident since my pre-teen years. I also was recently diagnosed with PTSD apparently brought on by childhood trauma and abuse. I was reading Herman’s book and was disheartened, and relieved, that I saw myself, and my life, articulated in her book. Although I have not experienced PTSD symptoms as significantly as some of the clients she sites in her book, I can still relate to the information she was offering.

My father, although a hard-working “family man”, was certainly a domestic tyrant. He would scare my mother, brother and myself into compliance by use of his fits of rage, psychological abuse and physical abuse. He had a need for us to be perfectly compliant at all times. We were not allowed to hold our own beliefs about issues, nor were we allowed to voice our opposition to his way of doing things. If we dared speak out against his wishes, we were surely to be damned.


These fits of rage and control conditioned me to believe that my desires and needs were insignificant in light of my fathers desires and needs. In order to get what I wanted from my father, I learned early in my life to manipulate him into compliance. I was able to do this by creating a scenario that would ultimately lead my father to decide to give me something that I wanted but the manipulation had to be played out in such a way that convinced my father that it was HIS idea to give it to me. Virtually every time I directly asked for something that I wanted, his impulsive response was declination of my request. He had this unhealthy need to always be in control and to always be right.

In order to uphold this desire of his and to also get what I needed or wanted, I was forced by circumstance to describe my needs in such a way that convinced my father that it was in his best interest to give me what I was asking for; however, I needed to be careful to not ask him for it directly. I needed to use other means of communication to deliver this information. I would use my mother, other family members or particulate situations that would somehow clue him in that it would be his decision to give me the something I was desiring. If he felt it was not his decision, his answer was always no.


This constant form of rejection has been intrusive in my adult life as well. I have found that I use this form of description, or manipulation, with my boyfriends and employers in order to get my needs met. I first create a dialog in my head, tracing it backwards from the ultimately desired result. Then, I would create a workable dialog between me and that person that I felt would result in my getting what I was seeking. If I was meticulous in the creation of the dialog in my head, and if I was practical in the responses I believed I would get from the other person, my end result was usually what I desired.


However, feeling the need to create this manipulation has caused me to feel like I am undeserving of my desires because I know that I manipulated that person into giving me what I wanted. Therefore, I would eventually sabotage that exact thing that I was trying to obtain. This has led to a rollercoaster of emotions, ultimately resulting in the symptoms of Bipolar Disorder, Type I as well as PTSD symptoms.


One month ago, after having undergone many years of medication and psychotherapy, I eliminated all medications from my life. I decided that if I continued to ingest these chemicals that I relied upon to “keep me stable” I was ultimately giving up my control to the medications. I was telling myself that I was unable to manage my own moods and therefore I was exacerbating my own victim perceptions. I am delighted to report that, after being medication-free for 2 months, my moods are more stable than they have ever been in my entire life. I am very confident in my abilities to control my moods, perceptions, cognitions and resulting behaviors and choices. I believe that I am now able, after reframing my perceptions and cognitions of the events that have occurred, and will continue to occur, in my life, that I am very capable of managing my moods without the use of lab-created chemicals. I am no longer a victim.


Journal Entry #5

Being hyperaware of one’s surroundings can be represented as a double-edged sword, especially in my case. Having been challenged for 20 years with symptoms of Bipolar Disorder, and having made haphazard decisions that usually ended in chaos, I became hyperaware of other people’s reactions to my choices and behaviors. I did this out of my need to judge the appropriateness of my choices and behaviors. It has helped me to gauge my decisions and to become more “socially acceptable” in my choices. I have always had a “rebel without a cause” persona, and I have enjoyed it on many occasions; however, I have desired in more recent years to align my behaviors more with what is socially acceptable. In order to succeed, I was required by circumstance to gauge people’s reactions to my choices in order to determine the appropriateness of my choices.


Being hyperaware of other people’s feelings has helped me decide what is appropriate and what is not; however, being hyperaware of other’s feelings has interfered with my ability to simply be who I am without concern for other’s perceptions. It is very difficult to stop observing, and analyzing, others’ body language, non-verbal cues and other symbols of acceptance or rejection. When I feel someone if not aligned with who I am being at that moment, I instinctly reconsider my decision and contemplate if I desire to change who I am being, or if I want to tolerate the discomfort of someone disagreeing with my character. This is a very challenging task as it takes me away from simply being who I am.


My current life goal is to be who I want to be, regardless of the response or reaction I perceive from others around me. However, it is very difficult to be impulsive – natural – with who I am when I am more concerned with being accepted or rejected by my peers. My daily, moment-to-moment, task is to be who I want to be and to put less effort into reading people’s signs of acceptance or rejection. This task is much more difficult than I ever thought it would be.
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